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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Royalux Exports Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Royalux Exports Private Limited (“the Company™j,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (*Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Financial Statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report for the financial year 2022-2023, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa material misstatement of this other information,
o required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

nd Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
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The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows of thz
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ar=

~ appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing

our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e_ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
ast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures




are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

-

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1”, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b...In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

IN Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
Anations given to us:



(1) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

. (ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

W) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and until date of this
report. '
(vi) As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is mandatory only w.e.f.

April 1, 2023, for the Company, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

- For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration N
@ A
o
o
Pranav Jain
Partner

Membership No. 098308
UDIN: 23098308B4 VLXT 6940

Date: August 04, 2023
Place: Noida



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Royalux Exports Private Limited on the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2023]

To the best of our information and according to the information, explanations, and written representations provided
to us by the Company and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit we
report that:

(i) (@) Inrespect of the company’s property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and intangible
assets.

(A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right of use assets. '

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment and right of use assets have been physically verified by
the management during the period and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification which have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion,
the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

() The Company doesn’t own any immovable property including investment properties (other
' than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed
in favor of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets
or intangible assets during the period.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) (@) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the period, except for goods in transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure
- of such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more

in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical verification which
have been properly dealt with in the books of account

(b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by banks based on
the security of current assets during the period. The quarterly returns, in respect of the working
capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods.

he Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
iability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the period.




(iv)

W)

(vi)
(vi))  (2)
(b)

(viii)
(ix) (3

(b)

(©)

(d)

—

Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and security, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered
under section 185.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as
deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the period-end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmations received
from banks and other lenders and written representation received from the management of
the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not
been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as

pssocfeﬁned under Companies Act, 2013) during the period ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly,

e8porting under clauses 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.



(%)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b

(b)

©

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the period. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder
with respect to the same. Further, the amounts so raised have been utilized by the Company
for the purposes for which these funds were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit except for an instance of cyber fraud on the Company which involved
illegally siphoning off money from the bank accounts amounting to Rs. 10 Million. The Company
has filed an FIR with relevant authorities. However, the Company has not been able to recover
any amount so siphoned off and the Company has written off the amount in the books of accounts.

‘No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the period.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit-committee under section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to have
an internal audit system under section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv)
of the Order is not applicable of the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company and there are no Core Investment Companies
in the Group. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) and (d) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

wxThe Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current year. However there was cash loss in

he immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 1.14 million.



(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the period. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has not undertaken any ongoing projects in relation to its CSR activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pranav Jain
Partner /
Membership No. 098308

UDIN: 23098308 BOVLXT 6949

Date:

F Y, 2013

Place: o 1A



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of Royalux Exports Private Limited on the financial statements for the year from
April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Royalux Exports Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. '

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based-on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable

ce that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with




generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the ICAL

-

For BGJC & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Pranav Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098308

UBIN: 23098308 BHVLXT 6940

23
Date: /Awgls® %" ;A
Place: s id t




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390%52

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(ANl armounis are in Rupee million, unless otherwise staled)

Assels
Non-curent assets
Fioperty, plant ond equipment
Right of use as:els
Intangible a3
Financial assets

(i} Other financial czsets
Man Curert Tax gusst (Met)
Oiher non cument aszels
Total non cumrent assels

Cumrent assets
Invenlores
Financial assets
(i} Trade receivables
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents
i) Bank balonces other than cash and cash equivolents
[iv) Ciher financial aszets
Oiher cument assels
Total cumrent assets

Total Assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share copital
Oiher equity

Total Equity

Non-cument liabilities
Financial liobilities

(i} Bomowings

(ii] Lecze liahilities
Frovisions

Total non-cumrent liabilities

Current liobilities

Financial liahilities

(i} Bomowinas

i} Leose lighilities

(i} Trade payabies
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises; and
- tolal outstanding dues of credilors olher than micro and small enlerprises

[iv) Ciher finoncial iokilities

Cither cument liobilifies

Provisions

Total cumrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Surnmary of significant accounfing policies

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For BGIC & Associales LLP

Chartered Accountanis
Firn's Registralion Mumber: D03304N/MN500054

Pranav Jain o =
Partier
Membership Number, 07

Place: Noida
Dole: August 04, 2023

e Asal As al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
3 30.80 -
4 42.46 -
5 0.05 -
6 1.31 -
7 0.04 .
8 3.04 -
77.72 -
9 284.99 -
10 29478 =
n 1.34 0.20
12 2.25 -
13 073
14 ' 1421 -
598.40 0.20
67512 020
15 90.31 0.10
16 117.02 (1.14)
207.33 (1.09)
17 - -
18 7.24 -
19 1.92 -
9.16 -
20 381.63 0.10
21 032 -
22
470 2
1533 -
23 5487 003
24 075 111
25 0.03 -
459.63 124
46879 124
67612 0.20
1&2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ROYALU jXI’ORTS PFRIVATE LIMITED

o .

Hardeep Singh Surmeet Kaur
Direclor Director
DIN: 00118729 DIN : 00118435




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN No.-U31907DL2021PTC390952
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

[All armounds are in Rupee milion, uniess othenvise stated)]

Not Year ended Year ended
s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 24 9482 -
Olherincome 27 31.21 -
Total Income 726.03 -
Expenses
Cost of molerials consumed 28 527.08 -
Change in invenloies 29 (51.04] -
Employee benelit expense 30 16.54 -
Finance caosls 31 15.25 -
Depreciofion and amortisalion exgpense 32 9.63 -
Other expensss 33 90.80 1.14
Total expenses 408.24 1.14
Profit/(Loss) before tax 117.79 (1.14)
Tax Expenses
Cument tax - -
Defered tax charge/ (credit) - -
Feloled to earlier years - -
Profit/{Loss) after tax 117.79 (1.14)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclossified to profit or loss
- Pemedsurement of defined benehl plans 037 -
- Income tax relating to thes= items - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.37 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 118.16 (1.14)
Earnings per equity share (in Rs.):
Nominal value of Rs. 10 each (previous y=ar Rs. 10 each)
-Basic (In Rs ) 34 13.04 [(0.01)
-Diluted {inRs ) 34 12.04 [0.01)
Sumrmary of significant accounling policies 142
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemeants.
As per our report of even date.
For BGIC & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charlered Accountants ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm's Registiation Mumiber: 002304 /NSO0054 %
g I
Q0 A a.o,wb#ﬂu-u-d/
Pranav Jain " Haordeep Singh Surmeet Kaur
Partrer Director Director
Membership Number, 078308 DIN: 00118727 DiN : 00118625

Place: Noida
Date: August 04, 2023




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2023
[All grounts are in Rupee million, uniess olherwise stated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profitf{loss) befors tax

Adjustments for:

Deprecialion and amartisalion expense

Finance cost

Inlei=st Income

Unrealised forsign exchanges ioss (net)

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operaling assets:
(increcse}/Deacrecase curent financial astet

(Increcse}/Decieass Non current financial asze
(Increasa)/Deciease olher non curent assels

(increase}/D: ase olher cunent ariels
(Increaszs)/Decrecss in Invenlones
(Increcss)/D ase Trade receivabies

Increcse/ (Decrecse) olher currant financial iabiilies
(Decrease)/Increass olher cumant liobilities
Increcse/(Dec &) Provisions

Incieass ase) Trode payabies

Cash used in operafions

Income tax paid (net of refunds)

Net cash used in operating activilies

B, Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchiase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of inlangible asset
Addilion of property, plant and equipment from takeover

Movermient in Fired Deposits
Interest received

Net cash used in investing acfivities
C. Cash flow from financing acfivities

Increase/(Decre
Increase/(Dec
Issue of Share capilal

Payment of Lease Obligations

Inledest paid

Net cash generated from financing activities

z2) in long leim borowings from banks

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents

=] in net increases in bonowings from olhers

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

117.79.

980
15.25
(0.18)
(13.58)

(1.14)

129.09

{083}
(1.31)
(2.04)
(14.21)
[284.99]
(281.09)
54.43
(0 34)
1.9¢
19.92

(380.23)

{0 06)

(A) (380.29)

(21.76)
(0.04)
(15.10)

(2.25)
0.18

(B) (38.99)

171.04

210.49
90.21
[37.29)
(12.03)

(C) 420.42

0.20

(A+B+C) 1.14

0.20




Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (see below)

Notes to cash flow stalement
Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Bulances with banks:
-n cument accaounis
Cash on hand

0.20 =

1.34 0.20
18 0.20

0.16 =
34 0.20

(ii} *Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

Non Current Borrowings (including Cunent Borrowings

Balance as at April 1, 2022

Loan drowals finterest accrued during the year (inculding addition from

takecver of propretary business

Loan repayments/finterest payment durng the year
Oither non cash chonges

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Balance as at December 07, 2021

Laian drawals finlerest accrued durng the year
Loan repaymentsfinterest payment durng the year
Olher non cash changes

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Lease Liabilities

Current Maturities)
- 0.10 -
1333 1,444 88 852
(5.77) (1,070.70) (0.54)
7.56 374.08 7.56
- 0.10 -
- 0.10 #

i) The cash flow sialement has been prepared under the indirect melhod as set out in Ind AS 7 Cash Fiow Slotements,
[iii} Moles to the Finoneiols Stotemenls are inlegral part of the Cash Flow Slatement.

For BGIC & Associates LLP
Chaneied Accourtonis
Fimn's Regisiration Numiber: D033504N/N5S00054

Pranav lain m(}h

Fartner
Membership Number, 07838

L
3

Place: Noida
Date: Avgust 04, 2033

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
ROYALUY EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

[
Hardeep Jingh
Direcior
DIN: 00118729

_{WM

Surmeet Kaur
Directar
DIN : 0D118675




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes In equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise slaled)

A. Equity Share Capital**

Balance as at December 07, 2021 0.10
Change in equity share capital during F.Y. 2021-22 -

Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.0
Change in equity share capital dudng F.Y, 2022-23 90.21
Balance as at March 31, 2023 90.31

B. Other Equity**

Particulars

ners of \'4

Reserve & Surplus Remeasurement of Total atiributable fo
Equity Component | Relained Earnings deflined benefit plans | owners of the company
Balance as at December 07, 2021 - - . .
Lass for the year - {1.14) = (1.14)
|Other comprehensive Income - - - -
Tolal Comprehensive Income - (1.14) - {1.14)
ransfer to general reseve - - - -
ransfer from Relained earnings - - - -
Other comprehensive Income - - - -
[Balance as at March 31, 2022 - (1.14) . (1.14
Profit for the year - 117.79 - 117.79
Other comprehensive Income - - 0.37 0.37
Total Comprehensive Income - 117.79 0.37 118.16
Adjustment during the year - - - -
ransfer to Equity - - - -
ransfer from Relained eamings - - = -
|[Balance as at March 31, 2023 = 116.65 0.37 117.02

**The accompanying notes 15 and 14 are inlegral part of these financial statements.

For BGJC & Assoclates LLP
Charlered Accouniants
Firrn's Registralion Mumber: 003304N/N500056

Pranav Jain
Parner
Membsership Number, 098308

Place: Moida
Date: August 04, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

ky

e
Hardeep Singh
Director
DIN: 00118729

ég_,w_z@ﬂ-‘?-‘-‘-z

Surmeet Kaur
Direclor
DIN : 00118475
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Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Background

Royalux Exports Private Limited is a Company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at Delhi. The
Company was incorporated in India on December 07, 2021. The entity is manufacturer and exporter of high end
LED Lighting and ABS Pipes.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act”) - read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2022 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’)),as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on August 04, 2023. The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Directors
after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.

Based on the above criteria, the Company has ascertained its accounting cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit liability Present value of defined benefit obligations.

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
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Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

e Note no. 36: leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease;

e Note no. 43: classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets are held
and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2023 is included in the following notes:

e Note no. 3: measurement of useful lives and residual values to property, plant and equipment;

e Note no. 4 & 5: impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts
including the recoverability of expenditure on internally- generated intangible assets;

e Note no. 35: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources;

e Note no. 43: Fair value measurement of financial instruments and impairment of financial assets.

Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either —

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole.

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis




Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not made effective

Recent accounting pronouncements Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to
the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.

On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as
below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April
1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial
statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions
that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact
on its financial statement.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(i) Revenue

In recognising revenue, the Company applies Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard require apportioning revenue
earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone selling price basis,
using a five-step model.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an amount that reflect
the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those product or services at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transaction price, net of any taxes/duties and
discounts.

The Company earns revenue from sales of high-end LED lighting and ABS Pipes.

Revenue from sale of high-end LED lighting and ABS Pipes

Revenue from Sale of high-end LED lighting and ABS Pipes is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control
of promised goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in

exchange for those goods i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic benefits associated with the
transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized at the fair value of the

: sidering the impact of variable consideration.
o
*




Royalux Exports Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,
service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract Balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition: -

o  The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods.

e At the time of entering into the agreement / raising an invoice, performance obligations in the contract are
identified. The Company delivers goods as per terms & condition of the contract. Contracts are of differing
natures and sometimes have one specific performance obligation, and on other occasions have multiple
performance obligations. Contract Liability has been created towards unsatisfied or partially satisfied
performance obligations.

e Contract fulfilment costs are expensed as incurred.

Interest income
Interest income on time deposits and inter-corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other income
In respect of other heads of income, the Company follows the practice of recognising income on accrual basis.

(ii)  Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), which
includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which
they are incurred.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value over
their useful life using written down value method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are
as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule II of the Act.

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Property Plant & Equipment:

Furniture and fixtures 10

Plant & Machinery 15

Office equipment 3

Vehicle 8-10
Computer equipment 2

Computer Servers and networks 6

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on addition
to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use.
Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction
or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will
flow to the Company and where its cost can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost
attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives usi written
down value method and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in the statement of prodian
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets: Useful lives (in years)
Software 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if any,
are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and recognised as income or
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Impairment loss recognised in respect
of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce
the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments
i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus fransaction costs tha \ie irectly
ttributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through and loss.
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Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in the statement of
profit and loss.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
e amortised cost;
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), or
e  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
FVTPL:
o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

o the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any d liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

|
N
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e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

e the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed,

e how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

» contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

» terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment and
extension features; and

« terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and impairment are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Debts investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are rccoyisﬁ'\m&pmﬁt or loss. Other
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net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVTOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement & gain and loss

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

iii. Offsetting
Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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iv. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and
the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Impairment of financial instruments:
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: -

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVTOCI- debt investments

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities
at FVTOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract such as a default or being past due for agreed credit period;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or another financial reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss:

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. \“}K
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12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed
credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

e the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

e the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets disclosed in the Balance Sheet.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
weighted average.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an\item by item basis,
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Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the related
services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligation in the balance sheet.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined
rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. These
contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The Company has no
further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contribution to defined
contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the period during
which the related services are rendered by the employees.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments to
vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent
to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.
Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service
cost as at the balance sheet date. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined
benefit obligation is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The Company’s
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount.

The Company’s determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences \

Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences scheme constitute other employee bene%\ts. The liability in
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Method. done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and losses are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also
recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for;

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets —
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be real.
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Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions

Contingent liability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
conCompanyed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be conCompanyed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company.

Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The wei ghted average
numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, share split or
consolidation of shares.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. §

3=
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In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment information
are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant
in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. Inter-
segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment,

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are
included under unallowable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallowable
income.

4. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company as a whole
and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker® or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 37 for segment information.

Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

* the contract involves the use of an identified asset

* the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and

* the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognises the
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the ROU asset arising from the
head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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3 FPropery, Plant and Equipment

Yeor ended March 31, 2023
Grou bloch [of cosl] Accumuloled depreciafion
Ad m Adamaon m
Descriplion As af fokeoverol  Addiians during Dliposal/ As af As at takeover of For the Dhpesal/ As at
April, 01, 2022 proprwtary the Year Adjusiment March 31, 2023 April, 01, 2022 propristary Year Adjustment March 31, 2023
Eaala, Buselne,
Plant & machinesy - 10,48 1793 - 2941 - 1.15 412 10} 531
Furmiture & fistnes - 2% 0.28 = 25 ] 0.40 it 107
Comguter - a0 (=X 1] - [2R:10] - o5 03 ) [+11]
Office Equipment - 431 1.53 - £.84 - 035 1.03 108y |44
158 Hold Property - - 1.524 - 1.54 = 0os - ons
T = - 0.08 ) 0.08 = = 000 = (EL2 ]
- 17.59 21.76 - 39.38 - 218 422 0.18, B.5§
Yeor ended March 31, 2022
Gious block {af coil) Accumuyl aprec] n Net block
Az af Dispasal/ As af As at Disposal/ As at As ot
Desutighien December07, 2021 AdaAons during fhe year Adjustment  March 31,2022 December 07, 2021 Porhe yeor Adjustment  March 31,2022 March 31, 2022
Pianl & machinesy - - - = = = = = =
Furnilure & fixlssg = - & & - - 5
Computer g = - E = g - 3 %
Office Equipmant - - - - 2 * = =
Footncte:

(i} There are ne Imgalmient ko

|y Plase reler maiils

Ivh The Company has nol camied out any sevalualion of (=D
V] Rele role ne 17 and HWieganding hypolhwestion/piedge of propety, plonf and sapment ogaired the be

ted In propecty, plan! 8. squlpment.

ety plant and sauipment.
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(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stated)

4 Right-of-use assets

Reconciliation of carrying value

Amount

Gross camnrying amount as at December 07, 2021

Opening balance
Additon during the year

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Addition from takeover of proprietary business
Additon during the period
Adjustment on account of modification

48.96

0.98

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31,2023

49.94

Accumulated amortisation & impairment
Opening balance
Amortisation for the vear

Closing accumulated amortisation & impairment as at March 31,2022

Addition from takeover of proprietary business
Amortisation for the year

4.09
3.39

Closing accumulated amortisation & impairment as af March 31, 2023

7.48

Net carrying amount as at March 31,2022

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023

42.4%

Note:

During the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022, the enfity recognised right of use assets as perInd AS 114

Leases (Refer note no 34)
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{AN amounls are in Rupes milion, unlest alherwie slaled]

5 Infangible Asset

Year ended March 31, 2023

Gross block {al cosf) A 1 depreclat Net block
Eddthon fom “Addiions Addifion from
Des o Azal takeover of during the Dispesal/ As af Asal fakeaver of For the Year Disposal/ As at Az at
criph April, 01, 2022 prapristary '.","'“u Adjustment  March 31, 2023 April, 01, 2022 proprietary Adjustment  March 31,2023 March 31, 2023
ol e
Computer Sofhwaie - - 00 - 004 = - om - 001 0.08
fis = 0.04 - 0.06 = - 0.01 - o.M 0.05
Year ended March 31, 2022
Gross block ot cost) A lated depreciah Net black
As af Disposal/ As at Asat Dispesal/ As at As af
Diycifien Docemberoz, 201 Ad¥onsduringtheyear PP March31,2022 _December 07, 2021 Sorthanear Adjustment  March 31,2022 March 31, 202
Computer Sofhware = = - = # ) S - - s =
Footnote:

{il There are no intemally generaled mbangible auets.
iii] There are no other rashichion on fifle of Intangible el other than as already disclossd,
(il There are no exchange dilfersnces adpusted In Infangible assets,

{v)The company have not acquirad Intangible asek free of chage,

of fon neminal consideration, by way of a govemment giant,
{¥] The Campany has not camisd aut any reyalis

alion of inkangible a:sels for the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended March 31, 2023,
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& Other financial assets (Non-curment)

Securty deposit

7 Non Cument Tax asset (Net)

Advarnce Tax [Net of provision for ter

8 Other non current assels

Balance with govemment autharities
Capilal Advances
Prepaid rent

9 Inventorles

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value
Raw rmalerials

Workdn-progress

Finished goods

Gaoods-In-Transit

Invenlories are pledged as secuiity for bomowings taken from bank (refer nole no 20)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

1.31
1.31
As at As af
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.04
0.0
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2.34
0.25
0.45
3.04
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
144 49
100.44
929
0.57
284.99
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[All amcunts are in Rupze million, uniess ofherwise stated)

1 bl As at As at
9 Trade reeebtiles March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Unsecured
Considered good 29478 E
Having significant increase in credit risk " :
Less: provisian for the expected credit loss = =
294.78 .
Fooinote:
Ageling Schedule for Trade Recelvables- March 31 2023
Particulars Qutstanding as at March 31, 2023 from due date of payment
Not Due | 0-6 Months | 6-12 months | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than 3 Year Total
Unsecured:
(i) Undlisputed Trade receivables — considerad good 104.15 37.17 14483 8.63 - - 294.78
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — Having significant
increase in cradit ris - = = - - - -
{ili) Undisputed Trade receivables — ciadif Impaired - - - - - -
iv} Disputed Trade recelvables — corsidered good - = - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade receivables — Having significant increase
| risk = = # = 7 % 2
vi} Disputed Trade recelvables — credit Impaired - - - - - -
Less: pravision for the expected credit loss = = - - = - -
Total 104.15 3717 144.83 6.63 - - 294.78
Ageing Schedule for Trade Recelvables- March 31, 2022
Particulars Outstanding as af March 31, 2022 from due dale of payment
Not Due | 0-8 Months | 6-12 months | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than 3 Year Total
Unsecured:
(il Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good = = - * E % &
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — Having significant
incredse in risk = = o = = = N
iii} Undisputed Trade receivables — credif Impared - = - - - - =
iv] Disputed Trade receivables — considered good - = = - - = -
{v] Disputed Trade receivables — Having significant increase
in_ciredit risk # £ = = £ - =
vi] Disputed Trade receivables — credit Impaired = o = - - = =
Less: provision for the expected credit [oss = = H 2 = = =
|Total . - - # - . .

The Company has measured expected credif loss of trade receivable based on simplified approach as perind AS 109 - Financlal Instrument
1. For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, reler note 43

2. Trade recelvables are non Inlerest bearing.

3. Trade receivables are pledged as securty for bomowings taken from bank {refer note no 20)
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11

12

13

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
-On current accounts
-Cash on hand

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, refer note 43,

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposit

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process, refer note 43,

Other financial assets (Cument)

Other Receivabies

Other cumrent assetls

Prepaid expense
Advances o supplier
Prepaid lease

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1.18 0.20
0.16 -
1.34 0.20
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2.25 -
2.25 -
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.83 -
0.83 -
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.80 -
13.37 -
0.04 -
14.21 -
—
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15 Equity share capital

As af Asaf
March 31, 2023 ch 31 2
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised Shares Capital
Equity Shares of # 10/- each 10000000 100.00 10000000 100.00
10000000 100.00 10000000 100.00
Issued Share Capital
Equity Shares of Z 10/- each, fully pald 9030868 90.31 10000 0.10
030848 90.31 10000 0.10
Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/~ each, fully paid 7030848 70.31 10000 0.10
9030848 §0.31 10000 0.10
15.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year,
As af As af
Particular
Number Amount Number Amount
Number of shares at the beginning 10000 0.10 -+ 10000 0.10
Add: Shares issued during the year 9020848 20.21 - -
Add / (Less) : Shares issued / bought back during the year ) - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year §030848 $0.31 10000 0.10
15.2 Details of the Share holders holding more than 5% shares along with number of shares held
As af As at
—a!MCh 31, 2023 _MM_,_
Name of shareholder No. of Shares ~ % of Equify  Changes during Holding in % of total
__held  Shares
Hardeep Singh - - -100% 9999 100
Fine Technologies (India) Private Limiled and its nominee 9030848 100 100% - ]
15.3 Delails of the Shares held by promfers at the end of year
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Name:of fharehaldar No. of Shares % of Equty  Changes during Holding in %_of total
held Shares ~ the veq eauity shares
Hardeep Singh - - -97.99% 9999 99.59%
Surmeet Kaur ' - - -0.01% 1 0.01%
Fine Technologies (india) Private Umiled and its nomines §030848 100 100% - -

15.4 Tha Company's holding Company is "IKIO Lighfing Lid" (Formerly Known as IKIO Lighting Pvt Lid).

15.5 No class of shares have been allotled as fully pald up pursuant fo contraci{s) without payment being recelved in cash or bought back during the
period of § years immediately proceeding the balance sheet date.

15.4 Terms/rights aftached to equity share

Voting
Each holder of equity shares is entilled to one vole per share held.

Divid
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian nipees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors s subject to approval of the

shareholders in ensuing Annual general meeling except in the case where inleim dividend is dislibuted. The Company has not distibuted any
dividend in the curent vear and previous vear,

liguidation
In the event of liquidafion of the Company, the halders of equity shares shall be enlitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company after
dislibution of all preferential amaunts, if any. Such distibution armounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,
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16 Other equity

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balarce

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(1.14)

(+} Net profit for the year 117.79 (1.14)
[+)Adjustrent

Closing balance (A) 114.45 (1.14)
Other comprehensive income

Opening - -
Add: olher comprehensive income for the year 0.37 -
Less: Transfer fo retained earnings -
Closing balance (B) 0.37 -
Total other equity (A+B) 117.02 (1.14)

(A) The amount received in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium and shall be utilized in accordance

with Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013,

(B) This amount represents retained earnings of @ company which are kept aside out of company's profits fo meet future (known

or unknown) obligations,
(C) This amount represents the accumulated earnings of the Company.

As at As at
17 Bomowings (Non current) March ;1“ 2023 March ;1{1 2022
Secured
Indusind Term Loan 7.56 -
Total Borrowings (Non curmrent) 7.56 -
Less: Current maturifies of non-cument borowings (included in note 20) 7.56 5

Borrowings (Non curmrent)

Footnotes:-

The Company's expasure to cumency risks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in Note 48
Secured loan

Term Loan

Indusind Bank Lid

The Company has availed long term loan from Indusind Bank, the loan is secured by first and exclusive charge on
hypothecation of enfire movable fixed assefs & equitable mortgage on industrial land and building of Rayoalux export private
limited situated at NSEZ, and collateral first and exclusive mortgage on industrial land and building of Raina Metal Pvt Lid. Itis
further secured by personal guaraniee of Mr, Hardeep Singh and his relatives i.e Surmeet Kaur, Sanjeet Singh, Ishween Kaur and

corporate guarantee by Raina Metal fech Private Limited.

Rate of interest of 8.50 % per annum. Term loans are repayble by September 29, 2023,

The loan oulstanding amount is USD 0.09 Million as at March 31,2023,

In case of default on FCNR Loan, Indusind bank may choose ta convert entire loan into INR Loan,




e As at As at
18 Lease liabilities (Non-cument) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Lecse liabilities 7.24 -
7.24 -
- As at As at
19 Provisions (Non-current) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for employees benefits {refer note no 39)
Gratuity 1.38 -
Compensated Absences 0.54 &
1.92 e
As at As at
20 Bomowings (Current) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured
Packing Credif Loan (Refer note below) 12384 -
Cash Credit (Refer note belaw) 39.74 -
Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note No. 17) 7.56 -
Unsecured
Directors 83.10 0.10
Intercompany Depaosits 127.3% -
381.63 0.10
Footnotes:-
Secured loan
P in dit Loan and Ca redi

The Company has availed working capilal loan (Pre/Post Shipment/PSR and Cash credit) from HDFC bank (sanctioned Rs, 230.00
Mn}. The loan is secured by personal guarantee given by Mr. Hardeep Singh and Mrs. Surmeet Kaur. I is further secured by
inventory, frade receivables and Corporate guarantee (collateral security of equitable mortgage on industrial land & Building) of
IKIO Solution Private Limited property located at industial property, plot no. 10 Sector 156, Mandoli village, Noida- 201301.

Unsecured Loan

1. Inferest free loan repayable on demand from Directors as at March 31, 2023 (Mr. Hardeep Singh 63.90 million and Mrs Surmeet

Kaur 19.20 million)

2. Infercompany depasits camying Interest Rate @ 9.50% repayable on demand as at March 31, 2023 {IKIO Lighting Ltd 44.79 millon

and Fine Technologies Pvt Lid 62,40 million)

As at

21 Lease liabilities (Current) March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Lease liabilities 0.32

0.32




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC 390952

Notes fo the financial statements as ot March 31, 2023

[All amounts are in Rupee million, unless ofherwise staled)

As at As at
22 Trads payahiles March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
total oulslanding dues of micro and small enlerprises {iefer nole no 37) 4.70 -
folal outstanding dues of credilors other than micro and small enlerprses 15.33 -
20.03 -
Footnote:
Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable- March 31, 2023
Particulars OQuistanding as at March 31, 2023 from due date of payment
Les::::n ! 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Micio enferprises and small enterprises 470 - - - 4.70
ther than micro enferprises and small enlerprisas 1523 0.10 = - 15.33
Micro enterprises and small enlerprises -Disputed Duss - - - E *
Other than micro enlerprises and small enlerprises-Disputed = ~
1Dues o = -
Tolal 19.93 0.10 - - 20.03
Agelng Schedule for Trade Payable- March 31, 2022
Particulars Qutstanding as at March 31, 2022 from due date of payment
bassihein] 1-2 Years 2-3Years | More than 3 Years Total
—year
Micro enlerprizes and small en terprses % i = = -
Other than micio enlerprises and small enlerprises = = = = o
Micro enlerprises and small enterprses -Disputed Dues = L = = =
Qther than micio enlerprises and small enleprses-Disputed
[Dues = =2 = - =
Total - 5 = %

I. For lrade payables to relaled parties pleass refer nole 40
ii. Other creditor are non interest bearing,
lii. For explanalion on the Company credif risk management proces, refer nole 43,




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390952

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31 , 2023
(Al amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stated)

23 Other financial liabilities (Cumrent)

Expense payable

Credifors pertaining to Capital Expenditure
Interest Accrued But Not Due

Temporary book overdraft

Other Payables

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process refer note 43,

24 Other current liabilities

Statufory dues payable

25 Provisions (cumrent)

Provision for employees benefits (refer note no 39)
Gratuity
Compensated Absences

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1.64 0.03
0.28 -
222 -
32.50
2021 -
56.87 0.03
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.75 1.11
0.75 1.11
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.01 -
0.02 -

0.03




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390952

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
26 Revenue from operations March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale of product 694.82 -
694.82 =

1. As at April 1, 2022, Royalux Exports Private Limited has taken over the business from Royalux Exports. Revenue of Rs.
171.75 milion was generated in the name of Royalux Exports from April 1, 2022, to May 31, 2022, and is included above
under Revenue from operations,

Year ended Year ended
27 Other income March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net gain on foreign currency transactions 29.43 -
Interest on FDR 0.16 -
Finance income on amortisation of security deposit 0.02 -

Export Incentive 0.76

Rebate & Discount 0.07 -
Miscellaneous income 0.77 -
31.21 -

. Year ended Year ended
28 Cost of materials consumed March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening stock 60.86 -
Add: Purchase 610,91 -
Less: Closing Stock 144.69 -
527.08 -

Year ended Year ended

29 Change in inventories March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022

Inventories (at closing)

- Work-in-progress. 100.44 -

- Finished product 39.29 -
139.73 -

Inventories (at opening)

- Work-in-progress 18.85 -

- Finished product 469.82 -
88.67 -

Net increase in inventories (51.08) -

Year ended Year ended

30 Employee benefits expense March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries & wages, bonus & other allowances 14.82 -

Expenses related to compensated absences 0.18 -

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans 0.26 -

Confribution to provident and other funds 0.84 -

Staff welfare expenses 0.42 -

16.54 -




31 Finance costs

Bank Interest
Interest on Lease Liabilities

32 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment (refer note 3 & 4)
Amortisation of Right of use and Intengible Asset (refer note §)

33 Other expenses

Bank Charges

Conveyance expense
Computer repair

Insurance

Rent

Rates & Taxes

Payment to Auditors

SEZ Online EDI Charges

Lab testing expense

Legal & professional charges
GST Ineligible Credit

Directors Sitting Fees

Security & maintenance charges
Printing & stationery

Repair & maintenance expense
Tour & traveling expense
Telephone expense

Vehicle expense

Selling and Distribution Expense
Consumable goods and Dies & tools
Electricity & Water Expenses
Unidentified financial loss
Freight

Miscellaneous expense

Footnotes:
i. Payment to Auditors (excluding goods & service tax)

Statutory Audlit
Tax AUd_Ii )

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

14.52
0.73

15,25

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

6.24
3.39

.63

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

1.58
0.15
0.07
0.60
0.10
0.23
0.45
0.10
4.75
4.50
4.44
0.08
0.88
0.28
3.99
0.33
0.42
0.01
11.62
0.1
3.61
10.00
41.80
0.71

90.80

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

0.20
0.25

0.03

0.45

0.03



ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC 390952

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
[All amounts are in Rupee milion, uniess otherwise stated)

34 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on 'Earnings Per Share'(EPS) Asal As ot

36

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
‘—-—'—-—-_,-_;_._
Basle and diluted earnings per share

-Basic [Rs.] 13.04 [113.61)
-Diluted (Rs.) 13.04 -
Narminal value per share 1000 -

(a) Profit athributable to equity shareholders

Profit for the vear 117.7% (1.14)

Profit athibutable fo squity shareholders 117.79 {1.14)

{b) Welghted average number of shares vsed as the denominator

Opening balance of issued equity shares 10000 10000
Effect of shares issued during the year, if any 020848
Weighted average number of equlty shares for basic and diluted EPS 9030&; lom

At present, the company does not have any dilutive palenlial equity share.

Conlingent Liabilities and Other Commitments
As at As at
Parficulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contingent Liabilities == === Tt

Corporate Guaranlee Given - 2

Capiltal Commitments

As af
Particulars March 31, 2023 As ot March 31, 2022
Capital Commilmenl[Net of Capital Advances] 0.72 -
Leases

The Company is a lessee under operaling lease of orie premises. The Company has execuled non-cancellable operaling leases fora
penod of 40 quarters,

Disclosure In respect of such operaling leases s as given below:
The movement in leass liabilifies during the vear ended is as follows:

As at As at
Farlictlors March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance - -
Addition from takeover of proprielary business 4.81
finance cost accrued during the year 0.73 -
Fayment of lease liabilities (0.24) -
Adjustment on account of modification 0.98
Closing Balance 7.56 w
Non-curent Lease liabilties 7.24 -
Cument Lease liabilties 032 -
The delails of the maturifies of lease liabilities at year ended are as follows;

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Not later than one year 0.32 -
Later than ane year but not later than five years 1.64 -
Later than five years 5.40 -

7.56 5
The aggregate lease renfal of Rs. 0.10 million on such leases has been charged to the Stalement of Frofit and Loss,

Right-of-use assefs
The changes in the canying value of Right of use assets for the year ended are as follows :

As at As at
finomics March3l.2023  March3l 2022
Opening Balance - -
Addition from takeaver of proprielary business 44 87
Addition -during the year &
Adjustment on account of modific ation 0.98
Depreciafion of Right of use asiafs {339] -
Closing Balance 42.46 .

The lease agreements do not have any restriclive onerous clauses, olher than that those nomally prevalent in simitar agreements for Lse
of assets, rent escalalion, and lease renewal. 1




37 Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2004:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
‘-—-‘_-_-—L___

The principal amount and the inlerest due thereon remaining unpaid to any MSME supplier as at

he end of each accounting year included in: 4.70 -

LPrncipal ameunt due fo micro and small enlerprses = Z

Interest due on above = =
TSMED AT 2005 aiemigy

with the amounts of the payment made to fhe supplier beyond the appainted day dwring each

accounling year E -

The amaunts of The payments made 16 fcis and small supphers beyond the appoinled day

during each accounling year, & -

U T yedror LIy T TR DTy TTeTT IWTTCTT TG ve

been paid but beyond the appaintment day during the year} but without adding the Inierest

specified under the MSMED Act, 2004 & -

The amouni of inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid al The end of each accounling ear, - =
S QITounT of TU Sl el =31 fermnaning aue and ooy 2 evell N e sUccesang yeals, o

such dale when the inferest dues as above are actually paid to the small enlerprise for the

Dpurpose of disallowance as a deduclible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006, - -

38 Segment reporting
A, Basls for Segmentation
An operaling segment is a companent that engages in business aclivilies from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate fo fransaclions with any of the other components, and for which discrale financial information Is
available,
The board of directors have been idenlified as the Chief Operaling Decision Maker (CODMY, since they are responsible for all major
decision w.r.t. the preparafion and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, exparnsion, dliance, joint veniure, merger
and acquisition, and expansion of any facility,
The Company's board reviews the results of each segment on a quartedy basis. The company's board of directors uses Piofit afler tax
['PAT) to assess the parfarmance of the operaling segments. Accordingly, there is only one reportable segment for the Company which Is
"Sale of Product”, hence, no specific disclosures have been made.
Entity wide disclosures
B. Information about reportable segments
The Company deals in one business segment namely Manufac luing of LED Lighling therefare, praduct wise revenue disclosures are not
applicable to the Comipany.
1) Information about geographical areas
Company operales primarily under a single geographic location ie. India and accordingly, there are no separate reporfable
geographical segments,
C. Revenue from Major customer
In Reyalux Export Private Limiled, Revenue generlaed from one customer amounling fo Rs. 431.95 Million [March 31, 2022 Nil)




ROYALUX EXPORTS FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909D12021PTC390952

Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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39 Employee Benefits
The Comipany conlibules to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India,
A. Defined confribution plans:
The Company makes conlibutions, delerrined as a specified percenlage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards pravident fund,
administered and managed by the govemment of India. The Company has no ebligations other than to make the specified conlibutions. The contibufions
. less (g they accriie

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Conlibufion to providen! fund 045 -

B. Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

The Company operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity, This plan enlilies an employee to receive half monlih's salary for each yeaar of
completed sarvice at the time of retiremeant/ect. The arality licthility Is entirely unfinded.

The present value of obligation is delermined based on acluarial valualion using the Projected Unit Credit Mefhod, which recagnise each perod of service
as giving rise fo additional employee benefit enfiflernent and measures each unit separately to build up the final abligalion,

The most recent actuarial valuation of present value of the defined benefil obligation for graluity were camied out as at March 31, 2023. The present value of
the defined benefit obliaations and the relaled curent service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Proiected Unit Credit Meihod.

A. The following table set out the status of the defined benefit obligation:
As at As at

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Net defined benefit liabllity

Gratuity (Unfunded) 3% -
Total employee benefit liabilities .39 -
Nan-curent 38 -
Current 0.01 -

B. Reconcillation of the net defined benefit liability

The following fable shows a recancilialion from the apening bal as fi ST = enelit bl i one
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Net
defined Defined Net defined
Particulars D.::ﬁd;:::.m Faj:: ::::i:' benefit benefit Fc:i:’:c;}:::: I benefit
gl P (assel)/  obligation P (asset)/ liability
llabliity
Balance at the beginning of The year - - - - - -
Addifion from takeaover of proprietary business 0.19 019
Included in profit or loss -
Current service cost 0.23 - 023 - - -
Inierest cost (income) 003 - an3 - - -
0.25 - 0.25 - - -
Included In OCI
Remeasurements loss/(gain) - - - - - -
Addifion from takeaver of proprielary business - - = S - -
Actuaral loss/{gain) arising from:
Financial assumptions 0.0 - 0.01 - - -
Demographic assumplions 0.02 - 002 - - -
Experience adjustment 0.34 - 0.34 - - -
0.37 - 0.37 - - -
Other
Conhibutions paid by the employer - - - - - -
Benefits paid - = = = = -
Balance at the end of the year 0.81 - 0.81 - - -
Year ended Year ended
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Service cost 0.23 -
MNetinterest cost 003 -

*** Graulity balance is not maiching due to intergroup employee transter during the year.




C. Plan Assets
The Company does not have any plant assets,
a) Econemic Assumplions

The principal assumplions are the discount raje and salary growith rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on govemment bonds af
the accounting dale with a term that matches that of liabilifies. Salary increase rale takes inlo aceount of inflation, senicrty, promotion and other relevant
factors on long term basis. Valuation assumptions are as follows which have been selecled by the company.

As at As at

i

Pistision March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Dicount Rale 7.36% -
Expected rate of future salary increase 5.00% -

The discount rate has been assumed at March 31, 2023: 7.34% which is delermined by reference fo marke! yield at the balance sheet duate on government
securfies. The eslimales of future salary increases, considerad in actuarial valuation, take account of inflalion, seniofily, promofion and other relevant faclors,
such as supply and demand in the employment market,

=] '] 5
As at As at
Pamculare March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Relirement Age 60 Years =
Moaratality rales inclusive of provision for discibility 1ALM [2012-14) -
Withdrawal rate (%} 65 -

D. Sensitivity analysis
Reasanably possible changes at the reparing date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding ather assumplions conslant, wauld have affected
the defined benefit obligations by the amount shown below:

As at March 31, 2023 As at
Parficulars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discaunt rate (1% mavement) [0 08) 0.09 - -
Salary escalafion rate (1% movement) ana (0 DA} - -

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distibution of cash flows expected under the plan, it dess provide an appraximalion of the sensifivify
of the assumplions shown,

Sensifivilies due to mortality is not malerial and hence impact of chanae nof caleulated.

Sensifivilies as to rale of inflalion, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before refirement and life expectancy are not
applicable being a lump sum benefit on retrement.

Description of Risk Exposures: '

Valualions are based on cerfuin assumptians, which are dynarmic in nature and vary over time. As such company is expossd to varous risks as follows:
i. Solary Increases- More than expected increase in the future salary levels may results in increase in the liabilllies.

Il. Discount Rate: In case of yisld on the govemment bonds drops in the future perod then it may resulf in increase in liability,

iii. ‘Withdrowals — if the actual withdrawal rate is tum out to be more or less than expected then it may resultin increase in the liabilities.

iv. Martality - if the actual mortality rate in the future tums out to be more or less than expected then it may resultincredse in the ligbilifies,

E. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans In future yedars
As at As at

RekcLarE March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 year 0.01 -
Between 1 -2 years 0.02 o
Between 2 - 5 years 0.18 -
Over 5 Years 1.18 -

Total 1.37 -
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Notes fo the financial statements for the-year ended March 31, 2023
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40 Related Parly Disclosure

In accordance with the requirsments of Ind AS 24 an Reiated Parly Disclosures, the names of the related parfies where control esisls andior with
whom fransaclions have faken place during the period and descriplion of retalionships, as idenlified and cerfified by the management are:

a) List of related parfies

Relafionship Name of related party
Ulfimate Holding Company IKIO Ughting Lid (From Seplermber 12, 2022}
Helding Company Fine Technalogies (India) Pivate Uimited {From September 12, 2022)

Enterprises In which key management personnel and thelr Fine Technologiss (India) Pivate Limited [Till Seplamber 11, 2022
relatives are able to exercise significant Influence* Ikl Led Lighling LLC

Royalux Lighting Private Umiled

Iklo Lighting Limited

Raina Metal Tech. Private Umiled

IO Selution Privale Umited

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Hardeep Singh
Mrs, Surmeet Kaur

Relalive of Key Managerial Personnel Mrs, Ishween Kaur

Mr. Sanjeet Singh
* With whom significant fransactions have been taken place during the vear
b) Details of related party ir lions are as bel

Parficular Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Transachion during the Year
Expenses
Purchases
Fine Technologles private Limited 54.00 -
Royalux Ughling Private Limiled 46,44 -
Ikio Lighling limited 5.41 -
Purchases of Fixed assets
lkic Lighling limited Zi2 -
Inlerest Expense
lkic Lighting Limited 1.64
fine Technaologies (India) Private Limiled 081
Loan Taken
Hardeep Singh 11340 -
Surmest Kaur 2680 -
Ikio Lighling Limited 7579 3
Fine Technologles privale Limited 6333 -
Repayment of loan taken
Hardeep Singh 4970 i -
Surmset Kaur 7.60 -
lkio Lighting Limited 9.50 -
Rent
Raina MeialTech Privale Umiled 0.0 -
Income
Revenue from operations
Ikic Led Lighting LLC 4983 -

Other Income
Royalux Ughling Privale Limiled 073 -




As at As at

C) Balance outstanding with or from related parties as:- March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables
Ikio Led Lighting LLC 51.40 a
Amounts Payable
Inka Technologies 002 =
lkio Lighting Limited 1.14
Amounts other payable
Ikio Lighting Limited 17.05 -
Amaounts other receivable
Fine Technaologies (India) Private Limited 0o% -
Reoyalux Lighling Privale Limited 0.74 -
Borowings
Hardeep Singh 63,90
Surmeet Kaur 19.20 -
lkio Lighting Limited 64.79 -
Fine Technalogies India Pyt Ltd 62 40 -
Interest Accrued But Not Due
Ikic Lighling Umiled 1.4% -
Fine Technologies (India) Private Umited 0.73 -

Security Taken from

kIO Salutions Privale Umited 163.59 -
Corporate / Personal Gurantees Taken from
Raina Metal Tech Pyt Lid 7.56 -
IKIQ Solutions Private Umiled 16359 -
Mr. Hardeep Singh 171.15 -
Mrs. Surmieet Kaur 171,15 -
Mrs. Ishween Kaur 7.56 -
Mr. Sanjeet Singh 7.56 -

Terms and conditions of transactions with the related parties

I. The terms and conditions of the frarsactions with key management pesonnel were no mare favorable than those available, or which might
reasanably be expecled to be available, on similar transactions to non-key management personnet relaled enlilies on an arm's length basis,

il. All outslanding balances with these relaled parfies are priced on an arm’s length basls and are te be seftied in cash. None of the balances are

secured.
. The amount disciosad in Corporate guaraniee taken in period ending March 31, 2023 is combined guaranies of IKIO Solution Privale Limited,
Mr, Hardeep Singh and Surmee! Kaur,
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41 Earnings In foreign currency M:::: ;?"2?:3 MYEC: ::' d;g:z
arc :
F.O.B. value of expaorts 494,82 -
Year ended Year ended

42 Expenditure in foreign cumency
. March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Raw material 33805 -

43 Fair value measurement and financial instruments
a) Financlal instruments - by category and fair values hierarchy
The fallowing table shaws the camying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilifies, including their level in the fair value hierarchy.
_As at March 31, 2023

beiftilir Carrying vamorﬂsed Falr value measurement using |

FVTPL FVocCl Cagt Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Non-current
Other financial asset - - 1.31 1.31 - - -
Cumrent
Trade receivables - - 294.78 294.78 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1.34 1.34 - - -
Bank Balances {other than Cash & Cash Equivalents) - - 2.25 2.25 - - -
Tolal - - 299.48 299.48
Financial llabilities
Non-current
Bamowings - - - - - = &
Non Cument lease liabilities - - 7.24 7.24 - - -
Cumrent
Bomowings - - 381.63 38143 - - -
Cumrent lease ligbilities - - 032 032 - - -
Trade payables - - 2003 2003 - - -
Other financlal liabilifiss - - 56 87 56 87 - - =
Tolal - - 446.09 466.09
As at March 31, 2022

Carrying Value Falr value measurement usin

R FVTPL Fvoc P Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Non-current
Other financial asset - - - - - - -
Cument
Trade receivables - - = - - - -
Cash and cash equivalenis - - 0.20 0.20 - - -
Barik Balances (ofher than Cash & Cash Equivalents) . = E: = = . 4
Total - - 0.20 0.20
Financial llabilities
Non-current
Bomowings - - = = = - -
Non Cunent lease liabilities - - - - - - -
Current
Barrowings - 3 0.10 0.0 - - -
Cument lease liabilifies - - - - - - -
Trade payables - - - - - - -
Oiher financial liabilities = = 003 0.03 - = -
Total - - 0.13 0.13

Level 1: It includes financial instumenls measured using quoled prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an aclive market is delermined using valuation technicues which maximize fhe use of
observable market dala and rely as little as possible on enlity specific eslimales. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are obsarvable, the
instrument is Included in level 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is nat based on observable markel dala, the inslrument is included in level 3, The fair value of financial assels and
llabilities included in Level 3 is delemmined in accordance with generally accepled pricing models based on discounled cash flow analysis using prices from

abisarvahle curant maket fransactions and dealar anales af similar instrimants
The Company's bomowings have been conlracled at floating rates of interest. Accordingly, the camying value of such borawings (including inlerest accrued

bt nat due) which annroximetes fair val e,

The camying amounts of frade receivables, frade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities, approximates the fair values,
due to their short-term nature. Fair value of non-cunent financial assets which includes bank deposils (due for maturity after twelve months from the reporfing
datal and sarrity danacic ic similar to tha camvina valiia ns thera is nn sionificant differsnnas hatwaan cearmyinm valie aand foir \‘mll 16y

The fair value for security depasils were calculaled based on discounled cash flows using a cument lending rale. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the
fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unchservable inputs including countemparty credit risk,

Valuation processes
The Management performs the valuations of financial assefs and liabilifies required for financial reparding pumoses on a perodic basis, including level 3 fair

wriliime

b) Financial risk management

The Cormpany has exposure fo the following risks arising from financial insfrumen Is:
= Credif risk

= Liquidity risk

—




= Inferest rate risk

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the C ompany's risk management framewark, The Board of
Directors have autharised senior management to eslablish the processes and ensure conlrof over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework In
line with the businesses of the company.

The Company's sk management policies are established fo idenlify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set approprale risks imils and controls, fo
monilor risks and adherence to limils. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in maiket condilions and the Company's aclivilies.

The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as inlerest rate risk, foreign cumency risk, other price risk, credif fsk, liquidity risk, and the use of
derivalive and non-derivative financial instruments, Compliance with policies and exposure limils is reviewed on a conlinuous basis.

I. Credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risks Is represenied by the folal camrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

As at As at
Porficulots March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables 29478 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1.34 020
Bark balances other than cash and cosh equivalents 225 -

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss fo the Company if a custemer or counlerparty fo a financialinstrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amount due from customer and invesiments. The Company mainiains a defined credit policy and rmoriters the
exposures fo these credit risks an an ongeing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalenls is imiled as the Company generally invesls in deposits with
scheduled commercial banks with high credit ralings assigned by domestic credit raling agencies.

The maximum exposure to the credit rsk af the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecurad and dre derved from
revenue eamed from customers primarily localed in India. The Company does monilor the economic environment in which it operales. The Company
manages its Credit risk thiough credit approvals. eslablishing credit imils and conlinuously manitoring credit worlhiness of custamers to which the Company

arnts cradit terms in tha nomal conma nf hisinass
On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impaimment loss or gain. The Company eslablishes an allowarice for

impairment that represants its expected credit lowses in respect of frade recelvable. The management usas a simplifisd approach (ie based on lifelime ECL)
for the purpase of impairment loss allowance, L

i, Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Campany will encounter difficulty in meeling the obligafions associated with its financial iabiiies that are seliied by delivering
cash or anolher financial asset, The Corpany's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as passible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
licbilifies when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed condifions, without incuming unacceptable lossas or fisking damage to the Company's
repuiation.

The Company believes that its liquidity posilion, including total cash [including bank depaosits under lien and excluding inlerest accrued but not due] of Rs. 1.34
millions as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 Rs. 0.20 milions) and the anlicipated future inlernally generated funds from operations will enable it to meet its
future knawn obligalions in the ordinary course of business.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies mainlaining sufficient cash and markelable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amaount of
credit facilifies fo meet cbligalions when due. The Company's policy Is fo regularly monitor its liquidity requiremenls to ensure that it mainlains sufficient resenves
of cash and funding from group companies to meet ifs liquidity requiremenls in the short and long term,

The Company's liquidity management proces: as monilored by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitorng future cash flows o ensure that requirements can be met.
- Maintaining roling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows,

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining confractual malurities of financial iabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes
inlerect merniad ot nat Aiie on borealsoe

As At March 31, 2023 Contractual cash flows

Carrying Belween one

Amount :’: :,'l:': year fo five M“’v“;:r" Lic Total

years

Non Cumrent
Non current borowings - - - - -
MNon cunent lsase liabilities 7.24 - 7.24 - 7.24
Cumrent -
Bamowings 381.63 381.43 - - 38143
Curent lease llabilities 0.32 032 - - 0.32
Trade payabiles 2003 2003 - - 2003
Other financial liabilities 5487 56 87 - - 5487
Total 446,09 453.85 7.24 - 446.09
As At 31st March 2022 Contractual cash flows

Canrying Between one

Amount ::: :rh.:': year to five MWQYH:::‘ Tive Total

yaq

Mon Current
Neon cument bomowings - - - - -
Non cunent lease liabililies - - - - -
Curmrent
Bomowings 0.10 0.10 - - 0.10
Current lease liabilities - - - - -
Trade payables = - - - -
Other financial liabilities 0.03 003 - - 0.03
Total 0.13 0.13 - . 0.13




lii. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in morket prices, Market risk comprises three fypes of
risk:inlerest rate risk. cumency risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure fo two type of market risk namely: cumency risk and inlerest rafe risk,
The objeclive of market risk management is fo manage and conlrol market risk exposures within acceptable paramelers, while oplimizing the return.

Currency risk

Curency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed
to the effects of fluctualion in the prevdiling foreign cumency exchange rales on its financial position and cash flows to the extent of earmings and expenses in
foreign cunencies. Exposure arises primarlly due to exchange rate fluctuations between the functional currency and olher cumencies from the Company's
operaling, invesling and financing aclivilies.

Exposure to cumency risk
The surmmary of quanlitafive dala about the company exposure to curency risk, ¢s expressed in Indian Rupees as at Maich 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
Particular As at March 31, 2023

Currency Amount Cumency Amount
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables INR 29472 usp 3.58
Financlal Liabllities
Trade Pavable INR 6.16 UsD 007
(Bonowing INR 7.56 UsD 0.09
|Particular As at 31st March 2022

Cumency Amount Cumency Amount
Financial Assefs
Trade Receivables INR - usp -
Financial Liabilties
Trade Pavable INR - uso -

WANG INR - USD :

Interest Rate Risk
Inlerest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate becouse of changes in moarket inlerest rates. The Compary's main
interest rale risk arses from long-term bomowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow inlerest rale risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The Company's interest rate risk arses fiom the term loans, Packing creditloan and Cash credit loan from banks camying floaling rate of inferest, These
obligalions esposes the Company to cash flow inlerest rale rsk. The exposure of the Company's bomowing to inferest rate changes as reporied to the
manaaement at the end of the renorting pedod are as follows:

As at As at
Veiable-tahe Insttomstie March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Packing cradit loan 123,84 -
Cash credit loan 3974 -
163.58 -

Cash flow senskivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 50 biosis points [bps) In inferest raies at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all olher variables, in parficular foreign cunency exchange rates, remain constant,

Particular Profit & Loss Equity, Net of Tax |
50 bps 50 bps 50 bps Increase | 50 bps decrease

Increase decrease

Interest on term loans from banks
For the period ended March 31, 2023 (0.82) 0.82 (0.41) 0.41
For the year ended March 31,2022 = = =




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC370952

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amaounis are In Rupee million, uniess otherwise staled)

44 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capilal Includes issued equity share capilal and all other equity reserves atlibutable to the equity
holders of the Company.
Manogement assesses the Company's capilal requirements in order to malntain an efficient overall financing structure, The Company manoges the capilal
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characterstics of the underlying assets,

To maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Company may return capilal to shareholders, raise new debi or ksue new shares.
The Company monilors capilal on the basis of the debt fo capilal ralio, which Is calculated as interest-bearing debls divided by total capilal (equity atlibutable
to owners of the parent plus inlerest-baaring debls).

As at As at
Farfeulsr March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Bonowings 381.63 0.10
Less : Cash and cash equivalent (1.34) (0.20
\Adjusted net debt (A) 380.29 (0.10
Total equity (B) i 207.33 {1.04]
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 1.83 0.10
45 Ratio Analysis Discloure
Ratios Formula n ouMurch ?;025023 - Marc ;;;iniﬂﬂ % change
mount _ |Rafies  |Amount |
Cument Ralio Cument Asels 578.40 020 4t
Current Liabilifies 45943 120 126 0.16| 70566%
Debt Equity Ralio Tolal Debi 381.63 1.84 .1 010| -2007.15%
Total Shareholders Equity 207.33 } _Odi
Debt Service Coveroge Ralio Earmings avaiiable for debt services 14247 .14 a 7
Mot Foaty aiarT YiiAs — i e
Return on Equity Ralio Net Profit aller Toxes . ; : 1.10 -48.19%
Equity Shareholder's Funds 207.33 0.5 [1.04}
Inventory Tumover Ralio |Cost of Goods Sold 47409 - B 00"
Average Invenlon 142.49 a4 - a00%
Trade Receivable Tumover Ralio Credit Soles 694 82 471 = = 000%
Average Account Receivables 147 .39 i B
Trade Payable Turnover Ralio Cradit Purchases 41091 41.00 - " 0.00%
Average Account Payables 001 : - -
Net Capilal Turmover Ratio |Sales 4£94.82 10.09 & : 000%
Averane Working Capilal 4886 : 1{t‘,l.fﬂ} :
Net Profit Ralio Net Profit 117.79 0.17 1.14] z 0.00%
Sales 4694 .82 L - Ay
Relurn on Capilal Employed (pre fax) EBIT 13304 023 (1.14] 1.21 0.00%
Caglal Enpploved 5 : [0.54] 3
*Finance Cosi+short ferm d=bi{incivding cument maturilies of long ferm debi]+ Current Lease Liability

Note: - Company was incomporated on December 07, 2021, During the perfod Decmiber 07, 2021 to March 31, 2022 company does not camy any business. On
Aprl 01, 2022 company takeover proprietary business of Royalux Exports, due to which reasons cannot be explained.

44 Detalls with respect to the Benami Properties:
Neo procesedings have been inilioted or pending against the enlity under the Benarni Transactions (prohibition) Act, 1988 for the year ended March 31, 2023 and

year ended March 31, 2022,

47 Undisclosed income
There Is no such income which has not been discloied in the baoks of accounts. No such income is sumenderad or disclosed as income during the year In the fax

assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

48 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtval Cumrency
Profil or loss on transac fions invalving Crypto cunency or Virtual Cumency No transaction durdng the year

Amount of curency held as at the reporting date No transaclion during the year

Depasits or advances from any person for the purpdse of frading or Investing

t fion during th
In Crypto Cunency / virtual curency Refansaction during ieiysat




ROYALUX EXPORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No.-U31909DL2021PTC390952

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Rupee million, unless otherwise stated)

49 Wilful Defaulter:
No bank or financial institution has declared the company as "Wilful defaulter”.

50 Relationship with Struck off Companies:
No transaction has been made with the company struck off under section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of

Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022,

51 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
All'applicable cases where regisiration of charges or safisfaction is required with Registrar of Companies have been done. No

reqgistration or safisfaction is pending for the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022,

52 Compliance with number of layers of companies:
Where the company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clouse (87) of section 2 of the Act read with

Companias (Resfriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

53 Loan or advances granted to the promoters, directors and KMPs and the related parties:

No loan or advances in the nature of loans are granted fo the promolers, directors, key managerial persons and the related
parties (as defined under Comparies Act, 2013), either severally or jeintly with any olher person that are:

a) repayable on demand or

b) without specifying any terms or year of repayment

55 Figures less than Rs. 5000 are disclosed as 0.00.
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